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Revenue
Child Support
Child Support

1 1 1
Expenditures/Revenues (Thousands of Dollars)
Note: Amounts do not include inflation unless otherwise noted below.
OPERATING EXPENDITURES FY 2002 FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2007
Personal Services
Travel
Contractual
Supplies
Equipment
Land & Structures
Grants & Claims
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERATING 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

ICAPITAL EXPENDITURES | |

ICHANGE IN REVENUES ( ) I I I

FUND SOURCE (Thousands of Dollars)
1002 Federal Receipts
1003 GF Match
1004 GF
1005 GF/Program Receipts
1037 GF/Mental Health
Other (Specify Type)

TOTAL 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Estimate of any current year (FY2001) cost: 0.0
POSITIONS
Full-time
Part-time
Temporary

ANALYSIS: (Attach a separata paqe if nocossary)

There would be no fiscal impact from this legislation. However, failure to adopt this legislation would move the stale 
out of compliance with federal law for child support enforcement programs and would expose the state to the penalty 
of losing about $70 million a year in federal funding for Alaska's child support enforcement program and Alaska's 
Temporary Assistance Program (ATAP).
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S e n a t e  H e a l t h , E d u c a t io n  a n d  S o c ia l  S e r v ic e s  C o m m it t e e
Se n a t o r  L y d a  G r e e n , C h a ir

HESS CS FO R  CSSB 19 (RES) 
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEM EN T/SO C SEC. #

The fo llow in g changes were made to CSSB 19 (RES):

>  Findings and intent language was removed.

>  The five -year sunset was renewed on requirements that applicants fo r various licenses 
provide the ir social security numbers to the licensing agency and that the licensing 
agency provide those social security numbers to ch ild support enforcement agencies.

>  The five -year sunset was renewed on the requirements that certain court documents 
and documents o f the Bureau o f V ita l Statistics include social security numbers and 
that those social security numbers be provided to ch ild support enforcement agencies.

>  The five -year sunset was renewed on the provis ions a llow ing the ch ild support 
enforcement agency to enter in to agreements w ith financia l institu tions fo r financia l 
data matching.

>  New hire reporting requirements amended to ensure that an employer who 
un in ten tiona lly fa ils to report a new ly hired employee to ch ild support enforcement 
agencies may not be held liable fo r the ir fa ilu re to do so in a private c iv il case.

Se n a t o r  L o r en  L e m a n , V ic e -Ch a ir 
Se n a t o r  Pete  K e l l y , Se n a t o r  Jer r y  W a r d , Se n a t o r  B e t t y e  D a v is



STATE OF ALASKA TONY KNOWLES, GOVERNOR

D E P A R T M E N T  O F  R E V E N U E
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT DIVISION

Please Reply To:
CSEO, MS

550 W. 7" Avg., Suita 310 
Anchotago, AK 99501-6G99 
907-269*6900
800*478-3300 Toll Free In Alaska
907-269-C650 CSC FAX
TTY: (907) 269*6894
Toll Frao Alaska TTY*. (800) 370*6894

B ill: CSSB 19 (HES)
Sponsor(s): Senate Rules C om m ittee by Kequest o f the Governor
Short T itle: C H ILD  SU PPO R T EN FO RCEM EN T/SO C SEC. #
Long T itle: An A ct relating to federal requirem ents regarding social security  number information and certain kinds o f  autom ated

data m atching with financial institutions: repealing the term ination date o f  changes made by ch. 87, SLA 1997, and
ch. 132, SLA 1998, regarding child support enforcem ent and related programs; repealing the nonseverability 
provision o f  ch. 132, SLA 1998; repealing uncodified laws relating to ch. 87, SLA 1997, and ch. 132, SLA 1998; 
and providing for an effective dale.

SUMMARY OF ATTORNEY GENERAL’S MEMO ON PRIVACY

T he righ t to privacy p rov ided  by  the A laska  C onstitu tion  is not ab so lu te , and the courts have ru led an ind iv id u a l’s  rights 
m ust be balanced against com pelling  sta te  and public in terests. In a  m em o Feb. 23, 199S, the A ttorney  G en era l’s  office 
opined tha t the p ropo sed  ch ild  suppo rt legislation requiring  Social S ecurity  num bers on slate license  app lications w ould 
pass a legal privacy challenge.

T he  A lask a  S uprem e C ourt has app lied  a three-part test to evaluating  privacy claim s. T his sum m ary  analyzes how  the 
leg islation  w ould stand  up  to tha t privacy test.

Is there a legitimate expectation o f privacy? The answer is no.
T h e  federal P rivacy  A ct o f  1974 specifically  allow s governm ent agencies to co llect Social S ecurity  num bers w hen 
required  by federal law . T he  Personal R esponsib ility  and W ork  O pportun ity  R econciliation  A ct o f  1996 (also  know n 
as w elfare reform ) is ju s t  such a case. It requires that states co llec t Social Security  num bers on license app lications 
and m ake those num bers availab le  to ch ild  support en fo rcem en t agencies. A ny expectation  o f  a  right to p rivacy  for a 
Social Security  n u m b er w ould  be based  on earlier congressional action to hold the num bers confiden tia l. T hat 
expectation , how ever, no lon ger reasonably  exists w ith  the change  in federal law requiring  d isc lo su re  o f  the  '.um bers 
W elfare  reform  m erely  ex tends the list o f  state and federal agencies required to collect the num l er for iden tification  
purposes.

Docs the use o f Social Security numbers serve a compelling stale interest? I'es.
E ven  if  a  court w ere to decide  there is a  reasonable  expectation  o f  privacy to a Social Security  num ber, the n ex t test 
w ould  be if  d isc lo su re  o f  the  num ber serves a com pelling  state  in terest. T he A laska  L egisla ture  has consisten tly  
recogn ized  a com pelling  p ub lic  need for en fo rcem en t o f  child  suppo rt obligations (the C hild  S upport E nforcem en t A ct 
ol 1977 and am endm ents in 1984). C ongress recognized  the sam e pub lic  interest in its w elfare reform  leg islation , and 
the  A laska L egisla ture  reaffirm ed  this w ith passage o f  child  su p p o rt legislation (SB 154) in 1997. T he cou rts  likely 
w ill find that any  privacy  concerns are far ou tw eighed by soc ie ty ’s in terests in effective ch ild  suppo rt en fo rcem en t. 
T he sta te ’s in terest also  is served  because m illions o f  dollars a  year o f  support obligations go  d irectly  into the  state 
general fund as repaym ent for pub lic  assistance paym ents to sing le-paren t households.

W ill Social Security numbers be collected in the least intrusive manner? Yes.
T he legislation requ ires the  sta te  to use  ex isting  licensing system s to collect Social Security  num bers -  no special 
form s or reporting  requ irem ents w ould  be im posed on ind iv idu als o r em ployers. T he A laska S uprem e C ourt has 
found that, generally , se lf-d isc losure  constitu tes the least in trusive m ethod o f  ob tain ing  inform ation. A nd  although  the 
leg islation  requires Social S ecurity  num bers on stale license app lica tions, it does not require d isp lay  o f  the num bers on 
the actual licenses.
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CSSB 19 (HES)
Senate Rules Committee by Request o f the Governor 
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT/SOC SEC. #
An Act relating to federal requirements regarding social security number information and certain kinds of automated 
data matching with financial institutions; repealing the termination date o f changes made by ch. 87, SLA 1997, and 
ch. 132, SLA 1998, regarding child support enforcement and relatec. programs; repealing the nonscvcrability 
provision of ch. 132, SLA 1998; repealing uncodified laws relating to ch. 87, SLA 1997, and ch. 132, SLA 1998; 
and providing for an effective date.

S p o n s o r ’ s  S t a t e m e n t

A laska 's C hild  S u pport E nfo rcem ent D ivision co llected  and d istribu ted  a record $85  m illion in Fiscal Y ear 2000 and  is 
headed  tow ard a new record th is year. S enate  B ill 19, as am ended  in the H ealth , E ducation  and  Social S ervices C om m ittee, 
g uaran tees that the sta te  w ill retain  the tools that have enab led  th is success, and that these tools w ill con tinue  to be available 
to help  thousands o f  ch ild ren  receive the financial suppo rt they  need. It a lso  keeps A laska  in com pliance w ith federal 
w elfare  reform  law s and elig ib le  fo r approx im ately  $70  m illion  in annual federal fund ing  to opera te A laska's fam ily 
assistance  and ch ild  support p rogram s.

T h is bill con tinues the program s begun in 1997 and 1998 as part o f  A laska's com pliance  w ith  federal w elfare reform , w hich 
has reduced p a ren ts’ dependence  on governm ent-funded  public  assistance  program s increasing  child  support co llections. 
W ithou t this leg islation  before  you today, those com pliance  m easures w ill sunset on Ju ly  1, 2001 .

T h is  bill is im portan t to the lives o f  the ch ild ren  and paren ts w ho  m ake up the 4S ,000  ch ild  suppo rt cases in A laska. It will 
keep in place tho se  successfu l p rov isions o f  the 1997 and 199S leg islation  w hich have  im proved  ch ild  support collections, 
including:

• E nhanced  due process p ro tec tions in patern ity  proceedings.
•  R equ irem en ts that all em ployers report new ly-h ired  em ployees to the child  suppo rt agency.
•  A uthorization  to use financial institu tion  d ata  m atches to locate assets o f  de linquen t paren ts.
•  Im m unity  from  civ il liability  lo r  em ployers and financial institu tions tha t com ply  w ith  child  support incom e- 

w ithho ld ing  orders.
•  P roh ib itions against d isc losing  identify ing inform ation  o f  a paren t o r ch ild  w hen  there is ev idence  o f  dom estic violence.
•  R equ irem en ts for Social Security  num bers on certain  vital sta tistics and cou rt records, and  on applications for som e 

sta le  licenses. T o  protect an ind iv idual's  p rivacy , the num bers are not requ ired  on the actual licenses but only on the 
applications.

•  A u thorization  for the child  suppo rt agency to  obtain  orders requ iring  d elinquen t paren ts to seek  w ork and orders to set 
aside  a paren t's  fraudu len t transfer o f  property  if  it w as d o n e  to avoid a child  suppo rt ob ligation .

• Im proved access to records o f  o ther governm en t agencies and  financial in stitu tions to locate delinquen t parents and 
the ir assets.

In the years since passage o f  the 1997 and 1998 leg isla tion , the slate has found the p rov isions o f  those bills effective in 
en su rin g  that ch ild ren  receive the suppo rt they need from  both paren ts. F ailu re  to adopt th is bill w ould jeo pard ize  several 
years o f  p rogress in help ing  A laska 's fam ilies.

ANCHORAGE OFFICE: PHONE; (907)269-6900/ TOLL FREE AK: (800)478-3300 JUNEAU: (907)465-5887 KENAI. (907)283-2900
550 W. 7” AVE. STE 310 TTY: (907)269-6894 / TOLL FREE AK: (800)370-6094 FAIRBANKS (907)451-2830 WASIIXA. (907)357-3550
ANCHORAGE, AK 99501-6659



St a t e  o f  a la s k a TONY KNOWLES, GOVERNGF1

B ill:
Sponsor(s): 
Short Title: 
Long Title:

Section 1:

Section 2:

Section 3:

Section 4: 

Section 5: 

Section 6: 

Section 7: 

Section 8: 

Section 9: 

Section 10: 

Section 11:

Section 12: 

Section 13:

D E P A R T M E N T  O F  R E V E N U E
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT DIVISION

Please Reply To:
CSED. MS

550 W. 7" Avo., S'.lie 310 
Anchorage. AK 99501-0699 
907-259-6900
800-178-3300 Toll Free In Alaska
907-269-6650 CSC FAX
TTY: (007)259-6894
Toll Free Alaska TTY: (BOO) 370-689-1

CSSB 19 (HES)
Senate Rules Committee by Request o f the Governor 
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT/SOC SEC. #
An Act relating to federal requirements regarding social security number information and certain kinds of automated 
data matching with financial institutions; repealing the termination date o f changes made by ch. 87. SLA 1997. and 
ch. 132, SLA 1998, regarding child support enforcement and related programs; repealing the nonscverability 
provision o f ch. 132, SLA 1998; repealing uncodified laws rc!at: ;g to ch. S7. SLA 1997, and ch. 132, SLA 1998; 
and providing for an effective date.

SECTIONAL ANALYSIS
Removes Social Security Number requirement on applications for licenses for businesses entering into premium 
finance agreements or insurance sold under the Premium Financing Act.

Removes Social Security Numbers from the Child Support Enforcement reporting requirements for Centralized 
Licensing.

Removes requirement that the Alaska Bar Association report an applicant's Social Security Number to Child Support 
Enforcement.

Removes Social Security Number req ircment on presumptive death certificates.

Removes Social Security Number requirement on applications for crewmcmbei fishing licenses.

Removes Social Security Number requirement on applications for resident commercial fishing licenses.

Removes Social Security Number requirement from dissolution, divorce, or annulment o f marriage forms.

Removes Social Security Number requirement from application for licensing o f  boiler operators.

Removes Social Security Number requirement from application for licensing o f security guards.

Removes Social Security Number requirement from application for licenses to sell fireworks at wholesale.

Slates that failure on the part o f an employer to report a newly hired or rehired employee as required by statute does 
not give rise to a civil action against the employer.

Removes Social Security Number requirement from application for drivers license.

Repeals:
1: S o c ia l S ecu rity  N u m b er req u irem en t o f  a p p lica tion  for lic e n se  for p erso n s m ak in g  loa n s

o f  m o n ey , cred it, g o o d s , or tilin gs under the A la sk a  S m a ll L oan s A ct.
2: Reporting requirement o f Social Security Numbers to Child Support Enforcement from licensing

application under Premium Financing Act.
3: Social Security Number requirement o f application for Centralized Licensing.
4: Social Security Number requirement for renewal o f Centralized Licensing license.
5: Social Security Number requirement for application for teacher certificate or a limited teacher certificate.

ANCHORAGE OFFICE: PHONE' (907)269-69007 TOLL FREE AK. (800)47B-3300
550 W. 7*' AVE, SIE 310 TTY (907)269-6894 7 TOLL FREE AK (800)370-6894
ANCHORAGE. AK 99501-6699
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Section 14:

Section 15: 

Section 16:

6: Reporting requirement o f  Social Security Numbers to Child Support Enforcement from licensing of
crewmember fishing licenses.

7: Reporting requirement o f Social Security Numbers to Child Support Enforcement from licensing of
commercial fishing licenses.

S: Social Security Number requirement for death registration.
9: Social Security Number requirement for court reports o f divorce, dissolution, and annulment.
10: Reporting requirement o f Social Security Numbers to Child Support Enforcement from licensing of boiler

operators.
11: Reporting requirement o f Social Security Numbers to Child Support Enforcement from licensing of security

guards.
12: Reporting requirement o f Social Security Numbers to Child Support Enforcement from licensing of

fireworks wholesalers.
13: Social Security Number requirement for application for Division o f Insurance licenses.
14: Social Security Number requirement for application for marriage license & reporting tequirements o f Social

Security Numbers to Child Support Enforcement.
15: Social Security Number requirement for paternity order or acknowledgements.
16: Social Security Number requirement in the records o f a judgement o f divorce or declaring a marriage void

for each party involved.
17: Social Security Number requirement for petitions filed for dissolution of marriages for each party involved.
IS: Social Security Number requirement in the records o f a judgement o f dissolution of marriage for each party

involved.
19: Financial data matching requirements.
20: Reporting requirement o f Social Security Numbers to Child Support Enforcement from drivers license

applications.

Repeals:
1: July 1,2001 repeal dale o f  1997 CSED legislation.
2: Sections o f ch. 37, SLA 199S, Austerman’s canned salmon processor reporting bill, which provide for

language o f exceptions o f the confidentiality o f the Department o f Revenue which don’t include Child 
Support Enforcement.

4: July 1, 2001 repeal date o f sections 3-9, 16,21-26, 3 0 -33 ,47 ,51 , and 52 of 1998 CSED legislation.
4: Intent o f consistency o f 1997 & 1998 CSED legislation, notwithstanding language differences.
5: Nonseverability o f sections 1-12, 14-17, 19-26,28-53, and 55 o f  1998 CSED legislation.
6: Definition o f “license” stipulation, which states that definition would remain the same if CSED legislation

were allowed to sunset. This is basically a housecleaning repealer.
7: Revisor's uncodified lasv changes for no delayed repeal o f 199S amendment to notification guidelines for

initiating paternity proceedings. Also a housecleaning repealer.

Sections 11 and 14 takes effect immediately.

Sections 1-10, 12, and 13 take effect July 1, 2006.
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M E M O R A N D U M  S t a t e  o f  A l a s k a
D e p a r tm e n t o f Lc w

to Deborah Vogt cat* February 24, 1998
Deputy Commissioner
Department of Revenue , . rjsno: 663-98-0248 ’

rajSPHCWNO: 465-3600

subject: Privacy Considerations and the 
Governor's Child Support Bill

mcm Dan N. Branch
Assistant Attorney General 
Human Services Section - Juneau

You have asked whether any provisions of HB 344/SB 252 (“die Governor's child 
support bill") would violate the privacy rights guaranteed Alaskans by arlicle I, section22, of the 
Alaska Constitution. Since the Governor's bill would Tepeal the sunset 7vrovision of SB 154 (ch. 
87, SLA 1997), a child support bill passed into law in 1997, you also asked whether the 
provisions of SB 15* violate privacy rights under the Alaska Constitution In our opinion, a 
court is unlikely to find that the provisions of either child support bill would be found to violate 
the right of privacy afforded under the Alaska Constitution.

BACKGROUND

The U.S. Congress, in an effort to reform the country’s welfare system, enacted the 
Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996, P.L. 104-193 
(PWRORA). The Act imposed a set of child support mandates upon the states.1 The federal 
mandates raise privacy issues by requiring the production and sharing of social security numbers, 
employee hire information, and information in government and bank records for child support 
purposes. In 1997, the Alaska Legislature complied with most of the federal mandates by 
enacting SB 154.2 Section 148(c) of SB 154 will sunset all the legal changes of the hill on July

1 Article I, section 8, of the U.S. Constitution gives Congress the authority to condition receipt 
of federal funds upon compliance with federal and administrative statutory directives. South Dakota 
v. Dole, 107 S. Ct. 2793 (1987). If a state does not substani 'ally comply with the child support 

mandates of the Social Security Act, the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services 
is authorized t penalize the state. Blessing v. Freestone, 117 S. Ct 1353 (1997).

2 For example, SB 154 did not satisfy tbc federal mandate that requires states to require all 
employers to report each new hire and rehire to uic child support agency within 20 days, because it 
was not required to be in effect until this year. A p ‘ovision designed to comply with this mandate is 
part of the Governor's child support bill.
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 1,1999. The Governor’s current child support bill wouldrepcal this sunset provision and comply
with federal child support mandates which were not addressed by SB 154.

DISCUSSION

0 ? /1 3 /a i  TUB 15:00 PAX 907278? '    ' CAS AGO @002

Right t< Privacy Guaranteed by the Alaska Constitution

In 1972, the right to privacy was made explicit in Alaska by an amendment to the 
Alaska Constitution. Ravin v. State, 537 P.2d 494,498 (Alaska 1975). ''.'he privacy amendment 
provides: ^

Right of Privacy. The right of the people to privacy is recognized and
shall not be infringed. The legislature shall implement this section.

* i1 * . I
Alaska Const, art I, sec. 22.

You asked if the sections of the Governor's child support bill or of SB 154 violate 
this provision. The following sections of the Governor's bill and SB 154 are most likely to be 
challenged as violations of article I, section 22, of the Alaska Constitution: sections mandating 
the production of social security numbers, employee hire information, financial information, 
utility records, and the sharing of information in government records.

The right to privacy under the Alaska Constitution is not absolute. Messerli v. 
State, 626 P.2d 81, 83 (Alaska 1981). One asserting a right to privacy must exhibit a subjective 
expectation of privacy that society is prepared to recognize as reasonable. State v. Glass, 583 
P.2d 872, 875 (Alaska 1978). Courts do not approach the right to privacy in a vacuum. Rather, 
there must be a balancing of conflicting rights and interests. Messerli, 626 P.2d at 83.

The Alaska Supreme Court applies the following three-part test when evaluating 
an informational privacy claim:

3 After the Alaska Legislature enacted SB 154, Congress added more mandates by adopting 
technical amendments to the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 
1996.
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(1) docs the party seeking to come within the protection of the right to
privacy have a legitimate expectation that the materials or information will
not be disclosed?

(2) is disclosure nonetheless required to serve a compelling state interest?

(3) if so, will the necessary disclosure occur in that manner which is least 
/ • . intrusive with respect to the right to privacy?

The A laska Wildlife Alliance v. Rue, 948 P.2d 976; 980 (Alaska 1997); Jones  v. Jennings, 788 
r  P.2d 732,738 (Alaskal990). ; -  " -V '

Social Security Numbers

The Governor's bill would require applicants for driver's licenses and for sport 
hunting and fishing licenses to provide their social security numbers on the license application. 
These numbers would then be shared with the child support agency in this and other states for 
child support purposes. SB 154 requires anyone applying for a professional or occupational 
license to provide his or her social security number on the application so that the numbers may 
be shared with child support agencies. It also requires that vital statistics records contain the 
social security numbers of those mentioned in them.

It is possible that someone in the state will assert that these provisions violate their 
right to privacy guaranteed by article I, section 22, o f  the Alaska Constitution. To prervail in 
court, anyone asserting such a challenge must meet the three-prong test set out in Alaska Wildlife 
A lliance , 948 P.2d at 980.

‘ The first prong of the privacy test requires a court to determine whether the party 
raising the right to privacy has a legitimate expectation that the Alaska Constitution prevents the 
state from disclosing information the party considers private. In this case, this means the court 
will have to determine if the party has a legitimate expectation that the state will not disclose the 
party’s social security number to child support agencies. Alaska W ildlife A lliance, 948 P.2d at 
980, It is doubtful that g  court would make such a finding because the U.S. Congress which 
created the social security system, and initially mandated that the numbers be kept private, has 
now mandated that they be disclosed on state license applications and given to child support 
agencies upon request

Congress created the social security number. It also passed the Privacy Act of 
1974,4 42 U.S.C. § 405(c)(2)(C), and 42 U.S.C. § 408(a)(8) to enhance the privacy protections

@003

P.L. 93-579, section 2, set out in note following 5 U.S.C. § 552a.
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for social security numbers. Section 7 of the Privacy Act of 1974 prohibited states from denying 
benefits to their citizens as a penalty for refusing to produce social security numbers. 42 U.S.C. 
§ 405(c)(2)(C)(viii)(l) and 42 U.S.C. § 408(a)(8) made it a criminal offense to disclose social 
security, numbers in violation of federal law. These laws are responsible, in large part, for 
creating an expectation that social security numbers are private, and not subject to release. At 
least one court has found that the Privacy Act of 1974 creates an expectation of privacy in the 
minds of employees concerning the use and disclosure of their social security numbers. Tribune- 
Review v. Allegheny County Housing Authority, 662 A.2d 677 (Pa. 1995).

The Privacy Act of 1974 does not apply where disclosure is mandated by federal 
0 2 / ’ /'. law. Sections of SB 154‘and the Governor’s child support bill would not violate the Privacy Act, 

42 U.S.C. § 405 or 42 U.S.C- § 408(a)(8) because they are enacting federal mandates. Therefore, 
a court is not likely to find that an Alaskan resident has a legitimate expectation that the Alaska 
right to privacy prevents the state from requiring the production of his or her social security 
number on license applications or from sharing the numbers with child support agencies.

i
. J  • A

There are other reasons that it is unlikely that a court would find that expectation 
to be reasonable. In State v. Chryst, 793 P.2d 538 (Alaska CL App. 1990), the court held there 
is no reasonable expectation of privacy with respect to a person’s name and address and die 
locations where he receives utility services. The Alaska Supreme Court has held that the right to 
privacy embodied in the Alaska Constitution is only implicated by the disclosure of personal 
information about oneself. Doe v. Alaska Superior Ct., Third Jud. Dist., 721 P.2d 617, 629 
(Alaska 1986). This is the type of personal information which, if  disclosed, could cause 
embarrassment or anxiety. Doe, 721 P.2d at 629; Falconer v. Alaska Public Offices 
Commission, 570 P.2d 469,479 (Alaska 1977). The disclosure of one’s social security number 
is not likely to evoke such a response.

• 11

Furthermore, in AS 44.99.300 - 44.99.350, the Legislature has indicated that 
"personal information" does not include a person’s name, address, or telephone number, if the 
number is published in a directory. In our opinion, a court is likely to find that a person's social 
security number is a specific identifying number, like an address or telephone number, that has 
become so widespread in use that an expectation that one can keep it private is unreasonable. 
Social security numbers are divulged for identification purposes in a wide variety of 
circumstances. For instance, social security numbers generally appear on drivws' licenses, which 
must usually be shown to cash a check.5 While there may once have been a higher expectation

5 Before passage of PR.WORA, Congress gave states permission to use social security numbers
to establish the identity of those applying for driver's licenses and to require applicants to provide 
their social security number on the drivers’ license application. See 42 U.S.C. § 405(c)(2)(C)(I). In 
Alaska, a driver’s social security number usually appears on his or her driver's license. Drivers are 
given the option of not having the number appear on their license. While the Governor’s child support
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of privacy for social security numbers, we believe that a court is likely to recognize that, in this 
day and age, the use of that number for identification purposes has made the expectation of 
keeping it private an unreasonable expectation.

The inquiry may not end there, however. Perhaps a court will decide that the 
expectation o f privacy in one’s social security number is a legitimate one. In such a case, the 
court would have to determine if the mandated disclosure will servt a compelling state interest 
See Alaska W ildlife A lliance, 948 P.2d at 980. This involves balancing the state interest served 

by the mandate provision with the right of privacy asserted. See, e.g., W elcome to the "Last 
Frontier," P ro fesso r  Gardner: Alaska's Independent Approach, to S ta te  C onstitutional 

02/r.VC .In terpreta tion , 12 Alaska L 'R e v .T ,  21 (1995);. , y ‘

hi our opinion, a court reviewing this issue is likely to find that the important 
issues served by the welfare reform mandates far outweigh the interests of an individual in 
keeping his or her social security number out of the child support enforcement system. The court 
would consider the same information about child support enforcement efforts that was considered 
by the Congress when it enacted the requirements relating to social security numbers in the federal 
welfare reform act that is implemented by SB 154 and the Governor’s child support bilL The 
Congress found that this use of social security numbers would enhance efforts to locate child 
support obligors and collect child support payments. The Congress has determined that children's 
poverty, national and state expenditures on welfare programs, and other societal problems could 
be decreased by more effective methods of child support enforcement

The Alaska Legislature has consistently recognized that there is a compelling 
public policy favoring enforcement of child support obligations. Anderson  v. Anderson , 736 
P.2d 320, 323 (Alaska 1987). The Legislature attempted to enhance the collection of child 
support in 1977 when it passed the Child Support Enforcement Act The Legislature stated that 
the act was passed for the following reasons: -- • :

The state. . .  declares that the common law and Alaska statutes pertaining
to the establishment and enforcement of child support obligations shall be
augmented by additional remedies in order to meet the needs of children.
It is declared to be the public policy of this state that this Act be construed

bill would require production of the social security number on the driver’s license application, it 
would not require that the number appear on the driver’s license.
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  ..   and administered to the end that children shall be maintained from the
resources of responsible parents, thereby relieving, at least in part, the 
burden presently bom by the general citizenry through welfare and welfare- 
related programs.

Section 1, ch. 126, SLA 1977.

In 1984, the Alaska Legislature passed amendments to the Child Support 
Enforcement Act "to encourage the efforts of those persons who seek to enforce the payment of 
child support obligations by noncustodial parents having the duty of support" Section 1, ch. 144, 
SLA 1984.

\ * *

Jn its statement of findings and purpose.for the 1984 amendments, the Legislature 
made the following finding: -

a disproportionately high percentage of lower-income, single-parent 
families are headed by women. The difficulties in obtaining child support 
from non-custodial parents contributing significantly to the hardship of 
those families. . . .  The legislature also finds that the hardship experienced 
by children in families who may rely on sunport frcm a noncustodial parent 
should not be a necessary condition that must be endured by those families.

Section 1, ch. 144, SLA 1984.

We believe that a court, looking at this type of information, is likely to find that, 
even if there is some right of privacy in one’s social security number, that right is outweighed in 
this instance by the societal interests in more effective child support enforcement

If the first two criteria were met, the final prong of Alaska's right to privacy test 
would require the court to determine whether the necessary disclosure will occur in die manner 
which is least intrusive with respect to one’s interest in the right to privacy. See Alaska Wildlife 
Alliance, 948 P.2d at 980. Here again, wc believe the proposed legisladon, and SB 154, meet 
this requirement

SB 154 and the Governor’s child support bill use the existing state licensing 
system to collect social security numbers. Since this approach involves self disclosure on forms 
that the license applicants will have to complete anyway, it is less intrusive than other systems that 
could be used to obtain the applicants' social security numbers. The Alaska Supreme Court has 
found that, generally, self-disclosure, accompanied by the appropriate use of the summons power, 
constitutes the least intrusive method of obtaining information. State, Dep't of Revenue, v. 
Oliver, 636 P.2d 1156,1167 (Alaska 1981). While applicants must provide their social security
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numbers on the license applicatio. s, there is no requirement that an applicant's social security 
number appear on the license itself, thereby reducing the chance of unnecessary disclosure. See, 
footnote 4, above.. The child support bills provide that social security numbers may only be 
shared with child support agencies for child support purposes. These provisions will help to 
ensure that the mandated disclosure not exceed what is necessary to serve the compelling state 
interest that justifies it

Almost all of the programs affected by SB 154 and the Governor's child support 
bill are carried out by. state employees. The system for dispensing hunting and sport fishing 
licenses is an exception. It relics upon private vendors to sell these licenses to applicants. This 

” / c might raise some' concern that the social security numbers of fish and game license applicants will 
be more at risk of unwarranted disclosure. 42 U.S.C. § 405(c)(2)(C)(viii)(I) should alleviate 

. those concerns. It provides that social security numbers ob'lined by any provision of law enacted 
after October 1,1990, shall be kept confidential. This mandate extends to government employees 
or anyone who has legal access to the numbers. See 42 U.S.C. § 405(c)(2XC)-(vw)(III). 
Therefore, the federal privacy mandate extends to private vendors who sell sport fish and hunting 
licenses to the public. -Violation of the mandate could result in conviction, in federal court, of 
a felony punishable byfrne and a maximum five-year jail sentence under 42 U.S.C. § 408(a)(8).

%. .  -A- H. i .  . *

Nov Hire Information

The Governor’s child support bill would require all employr rs and labor unions 
in the state to report all new hires and rehires to the state child support enforcement agency. Each 
report will contain the name, address and social security number of each newly hired employee, 
and the name, address, and federal tax identifying number of the employer. Currently, only those 
Alaskan businesses that employ more than 19 employees arc required to provide this information 
for long-term employees. See AS 25.27.075.6 1 “ 1 1

We do not believe a court would find that AS 25.27.075, as amended by the 
Governor’s child support bill, would violate the right to privacy guaranteed by article I, section 
22, of the Alaska Constitution. Any court considering such a challenge would apply the three- 
prong test discussed above. The first prong would require1 the court to determine if the party 
asserting the right to privacy has a legitimate expectation that the inform ation will not be 
disclosed. Alaska Wildlife Alliance, 948 P.2d at 980.

AS 25.27.075 requires employers to report the social security number: and other 
personal identifiers like names and addresses to the state child support agency. In State v. Chryst,

@007

AS 25.27.075 was rewritten into its current form in 1992 and has not been challcnj cd in court
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- .........793 P. 2d 538 (Alaska App. 1990), the Court of Appeals held that a defectum did not have a
reasonable expectation of privacy with respect to address information given to an electric utility 
for purposes of obtaining utility service. There is no reason to believe that a person would have 
a greater expectation of privacy if the information is given to an employer rather th.Ji to a utility.

Furthermore, all of the information sought is shared on income tax returns and 
other government records where, in the course of thel je, they are bound to be seen by others. 
Therefore, the legitimate expectation of privacy is lower. See Oliver, 636 P.2d at 1167.

Even if  a person did have a legitimate expectation that his or her name, address, 
and date of hire would not be disclosed by the employer, a court is likely to uphold AS 25.27.075 

02/ 1 "/: because its disclosure requirements serve the compelling state interest of enfo/cing child support 
obligations. Alaska Wildlife Alliance, 948 P.2d at 980. The analysis is similar to that for 

. . sclosure of social security numbers as set out above.

Finally, the method of employer reporting, designated by AS 25.27.075 to ensure 
that the state child support agency obtains new bore information, meets the third prong of the 
Alaska privacy test because it is least intrusive on the right to privacy. Alaska Wildlife Alliance, 
948 P.2d at 980. We believe a court would find that employer reporting, like self-disclosure, 
constitutes the least intrusive method of obtaining the needed information. Oliver, 636 P.2d at 
H67, - '• :

. : J

Access to Government Records For Child Support Pt poses

SB 154 gave child support enforcement agencies access to information in the 
following govemment rccords: vital statistics, state and local taxes, real and personal property, 
employment security, public assistance, motor vehicles, and corrections. The information may 
only be used for child support purposes. Under the Alaska Wildlife Alliance test, the first 
question to ask is whether residents have a le primate expectation that these government records 
will not be disclosed for child support purposes. 948 P.2d at 980.

XV •  V I , . /  . • . •

This question must be viewed in light of Alaska’s policv favoring open state 
records. AS 09.25.110 mandates that, unless specifically pro’ :ded otherwise, the public records 
of all state agencies are open to inspection by the public. See AS 09.25.110; see also City of 
Kenai v. Kenai Peninsula Newspapers, Inc., 642 P.2d 1316 (Alaska 1982) (the statute 
articulates a broad policy of open records).' ...........

.. :.k .. w |

Specific exemptions to AS 09.25.110 could give rise to a legitimate expectation 
that the state records protected by the statutory exemptions will not be disclosed. For example, 
Vital Statistics records are protected from public inspection. See AS 09.25.120(a)(1) and AS 
18.50.310. On the other hand, statutory sections like those contained in SB 154, which require 
that designated portions of state records be made available to child support agencies, make any



02/13/01 TUE 15:03 FAI 8072783' CAS AGO 0008

Deborah Vogt, Deputy Commissioner February 24, 1998
Department of Revenue Page 9

. A.G. file no: 663-98-024L 1'  •'

   such expectation of privacy unreasonable.7 Therefore, it is unlikely that a court would find that
Alaska residents have a legitimate expectation that information concerning them in state recorus 
would not be shared with child support agencies.

The analysis of the second prong of the Alaska privacy test is the same as for social 
security numbers and employer hire information. We believe that the strong state interest in 
securing payment of child support, and in complying with federal mandates, would greatly 
outweigh any interest a resident might have in preventing a child support enforcement agency 
from having access to the information needed to establish or enforce a child support obligation.

\ *» ,v 1
0 1/:.: / : ' . * ■ '  ffa eourtrfound that residents did have a legitimate expectation of privacy, and that 

disclosure of state records serves a compelling state interest, it would have to determine if the 
necessary disclosure will occur in that manner which is least intrusive with respect to the privacy 
rigl t  Alaska Wildlife Alliance  ̂ 948 P.2d at 980. We believe the court would make such a 
finding.

J  * *
The disclosure statements only require agency-to-agency production of 

information already in. the state records. This limits the scope of information to be released. 
Without access to government records, child support agencies would be required to make more 
intrusive investigations which could result in a far greater invasion of privacy.

• h « « • « . * • •  • •• M

Financial Records 1

SB 154 amended the Banking Code, AS 06.05, to require that a bank provide child 
support agencies, upon'request, with a certified copy of a record concerning an individual who 
either owes or is owed child- jport The information could he provided by electronic means and 
may only be used for child support purposes.

O i l .  . i. . * .
Starting down the now familiar road, we first must determine whether someone 

who owes or is owed child support has a legitimate expectation that information contained in his 
or her bank account will not be disclosed to a child support agency. Alaska Wildlife Alliance,• 
948 P.2d 976 (Alaska 1997); Jones v. Jennings, 788 P.2d 732 (Alaska 1990).

: r

7 For example, SB 154 amended AS 18.50.330 to provide child support agencies access to vital 
statistic records for child support purposes. See AS 18.50,333(6).

i
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The United States Supreme Court has ruled that bank customers have no legitimate 
expectation of privacy concerning their bank records. United States v. Miller, 425 U.S. 435,442, 
96 S. Ct. 1619, 1624 (1976). In reaching this conclusion the Court observed:

The checks are not confidential communicat’cms but negotiable 
instruments to be used in commercial transactions. All of the documents 
obtained, including statements and deposit slips contain only information 
voluntarily conveyed to banks and exposed to their employees in the 
ordinary course of business.

o.’/?..?/c 425 U.S: at442j'96 S; Ct. at 1 6 2 4 . -v. ■;

While the Miller Court’s findings concerning expectations o f privacy do not 
foreclose a challenge under the Alaska Constitution,8 they do help establish that one may not have 
a legitimate expectation, under the Alaska Constitution, that bank records will not be disclosed 
to a government child support agency.

Even if participants in a child support case had a legitimate expectation that their 
bank records would not be disclosed to child support agencies, the compelling state interest in 
establishing and enforcing child support obligations justifies the disclosure. This satisfies the
second prong of the Alaska privacy test. Alaska Wildlife Alliance, 948 P.2d at 980, • -

1 . : . n%

The only remaining question is whether the bank record provisions of SB 154 
■nrovidc that die records disclosure will be made in the- manner which is least intrusive with
respect to the right to privacy. Alaska Wildlife Allia'tce; 948 P.2d at 980.

-*•! ' ’ «V ’ •* * -*• *1
The bank record disclosure requirement of SB 154 is contained in AS 06.05.537. 

That statute only requires disclosure of bank records of the assets and liabilities of individuals 
who owe or are owed child support The agency receiving the information may only use it for 
legal child support purposes. It is hard to imagine a less intrusive way to obtain this information.

Public Utilities Records
...I :

I • * * . •
• I «

@010

7; c :.o

8 The right to privacy embodied in the Alaska Constitution is broader than that provided by the 
U.S. Constitution, Pratty. Kirkpatrick, 718 P.2d 962 (Alaska 1986).
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—  ---  —SB 154 also requires public utilities to give child support agencies access to locate
information concerning their customers. The Alaska Court of Appeals has ruled that a utility 
customer does not have a reasonable expectation of privacy concerning information about the 
customer’s name and address contained in the utility’s records. Chryst, 793 P.2d at 542. 
Therefore, the customer cannot have a legitimate expectation that the information will net be 
disclosed and the information is not protected by article I, section 22, of the Alaska Constitution.

CONCLUSION

SB 154 increased the access of child support enforcement agencies, to personal 
information, such as social security numbers' concerning Alaskan residents. The Governor’s child "r ;-
support bill would make even more information available to the agencies. You asked whether 
these informational mandates would violate the right to privacy of an affected individual, 
guaranteed by the Alaska Constitution. We believe the answer is no. Federal law required Alaska 
to adopt laws providing child support agencies such access to personal information for child 
support purposes. After passage of the federal mandates, it is not reasonable for the residents of 
Alaska to expect that the designated information about themselves in government and other 
affected records will not be made available to child support agencies for child support purposes.

Even if such an expectation were reasonable, an Alaskan court would be still likely 
to c^der disclosure of mandated information because the disclosure would serve the impo1 tant 
Suite interest in seeing that child support obligations are honored. Finally, the informational' 
disclosure provisions of SB 154 and the Governor’s child support bill provide for least intrusive 

. disclosure of personal information.

If this memo does not fully answer your questions, or if I can be of other assistance 
on this matter, please let me know.

i ► t * 1
DNB:bap •
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D ear President Halford:

Alaska's Child Support E nforcem ent D ivision collected and distributed a record $85 
m illion in Fiscai Y ear 2000 and is headed tow ard a new  record this year. This bill I 
transm it today guarantees the state can retain the tools that enabled  this success in helping 
thousands o f  children receive the financial support they need. It also keeps A laska in 
com pliance with federal w elfare reform  laws and eligible for nearly $80 million in annual 
federal funding to operate A laska 's  family assistance and child support programs.

This bill continues the state program, beg. in in 1997 and 1998 as part o f  Alaska's 
com pliance w ith federal w elfare reform  w hich has reduced dependence on government- 
funded public assistance program s by increasing child support collections. The Alaska 
legislature chose to sunset those com pliance  m easures on Ju ly  1, 2001

This bill i hnportan t to the lives o f  the children and parents w ho  m ake up the nearly 
48,000 child support cases in A laska. It will keep in place those successful provisions c f  
the 1997 and 1998 legislation w hich  have im proved child support collections, including:

•  Enhanced  due process protections in paternity proceedings.
•  R equirem ents that all em ployers report newly hired em ployees to the child support 

agency.
•  A uthorization to use financial institution data m atches to locate assets o f  

delinquent parents.
•  Im m unity  from civil liability for em ployers and financial institutions that com ply 

w ith child support incom e-w ithhold ing  orders.

http://www.gov.siale.ak.us
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• Prohibitions against disclosing identifying inform ation o f  a parent or child w hen  
there is ev idence o f  domestic violence.

•  R equirem ents for Social Security num bers on certain vital statistics and court 
records, and on applications for som e state licenses. To protect an individual's 
privacy, the num bers are not required on the actual licenses but only on the 
applications.

•  A uthorization for the child support agency to obtain orders requiring delinquent 
parents to seek w ork  and orders to set aside a  parent's fraudulent transfer o f  
p roperty  i f  it w as done to avoid a child support obligation.

• Im proved access to records o f  other governm ent agencies and financial institutions 
to locate delinquent parents and their assets.

I also w an t to po in t out that this bill repeals one controversial part o f  the earlier 
legislation. A laska recently received a w aiver from the federal requirem ent to collect 
Social Security num bers on applications for sport fishing and hunting licenses, allow ing 
us to rem ove that requirem ent from law.

In the years since passage o f  the 1997 and 1998 legislation, the state has found the 
provisions o f  those bills effective at ensuring children receive the support they need from 
both parents. Failure to adopt this bill w ould jeopard ize  several years o f  progress in 
helping A laska 's  families.

Sincerely,
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